
 TOWN OF HAYMARKET TOWN COUNCIL  

 WORK SESSION  

~ Agenda ~ 

  
Shelley M. Kozlowski, Clerk of Council  15000 Washington St  
http://www.townofhaymarket.org/  Haymarket, VA 20169 

Monday, December 3, 2018 6:00 PM Council Chambers 

Town of Haymarket Town Council Page 1 Printed 11/29/2018 

I. Call to Order 

II. Agenda Items 
1. Work Session Discussion 
2. SUP#2018-009, McDonald's SUP 
3. Bond Release - Haymarket Iceplex 

III. Adjournment  
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Emily K. Lockhart 
TOWN PLANNER 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 
DATE: 
SUBJECT:  

Town Council 
Emily K. Lockhart, Town Planner and Zoning Administrator 
November 27, 2018 
Special Use Permit SUP#2018-009, McDonald’s Drive-Thru Located at 6740 Leaberry 
Way 

Summary: The McDonald’s located at 6740 Leaberry Way has applied for a Special Use Permit to 
expand the existing drive-thru lane and add a second service lane. The applicant, McDonald’s will 
remove existing landscaping and hardscapes to improve the flow of traffic in the drive-thru lane and 
add the additional lane. Please see the attached site plan document for the existing conditions and the 
proposed conditions.  

The Zoning Ordinance requires the following standards are considered and met prior to approval. 
(d) A special use shall be approved if its design, location, construction, method of operation, special
characteristics and other aspects satisfy the following standards:

(1) The proposed use at the stipulated location shall be in accordance with the official policies of an
adopted comprehensive plan, and with any specific element of such plan.
(2) The proposed use shall be in accordance with the general purpose and intent of the applicable
zoning district requirements.
(3) The proposed use shall not adversely affect the use or values of surrounding properties and
structures.
(4) The proposed use shall not adversely affect the health, safety or general welfare of persons residing
or working in the neighborhood.
(5) Pedestrian and vehicular traffic generated by the proposed use shall not be hazardous or conflict
with the existing and anticipated traffic in the neighborhood.
(6) Utility, drainage, parking, loading and other necessary facilities provided to serve the proposed use
shall be adequate.

In addition, the drive-thru must meet the following Use and Design Standards; 
Drive-thru facilities.  
The following general standards shall apply to all drive-thru facilities:  
(1) All drive-thru entrances must be at least 50 feet from an intersection. The distance is measured along the
property line from the junction of the two street lot lines to the nearest edge of the entrance.

2.2.a
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(2) Drive-thru facilities shall be located and designed so that vehicular circulation does not conflict with traffic
movements in adjacent streets, service drives, and/or parking areas.
(3) Off-street stacking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the following requirements:

a. Stacking spaces shall not interfere with travel way traffic or designated parking spaces.
b. Stacking spaces shall be at a minimum of eighteen (18) feet in length.
c. Stacking spaces shall be located to the side or rear of the principle structure and shall not be adjacent
to any street right-of-way.
d. Off-street stacking spaces shall be provided in accordance with the following table:

Town Planner Analysis of Impacts: 
(1) McDonald’s is a preexisting drive-thru use located in the Industrial Zone of Town. The

additional drive-thru lane proposed will work to alleviate the current traffic issues on the
site by allowing additional vehicles to stack in the drive-thru lanes. The second drive-thru
lane will specifically address the traffic back up that occurs on to Washington Street as
well as Leaberry Way.

(2) The proposed use is in general conformance with the Industrial Zoning District and the
Comprehensive Plan. Specifically, the Comprehensive Plan addresses the Route 15/Route
55 Intersection and surrounding land parcels as a Planned Interchange Park, where
development is highway oriented.

(3) The proposed use is not expected to adversely affect the use or values of surrounding
properties and structures, rather alleviate the traffic congestion and enhance in the
aesthetics of the site.
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(4) The proposed use is not expected to adversely affect the health, safety, or general welfare
of person working in the building or surrounding areas.

(5) Pedestrian and vehicular traffic generated by the proposed use is not expected to pose any
hazardous conditions or conflict with existing and anticipated traffic on the site. Please
review the narrative provided by the applicant.

(6) The utilities and drainage on the site are adequate. The parking and loading on the site
should be discussed, the Town Planner is concerned about the amount of parking that
would be blocked by the drive-thru lane as well as significant stacking in the second lane.
If the second lane is stacked with vehicles, the parked vehicles along the north property
line may be blocked in. Town Planner recommends discussing the line striping, barriers, or
other measures taken to eliminate over stacking the drive-thru lanes and blocking vehicles
in.

Town Planner Recommendation: 
I recommend the Town Council visit the site prior to the meeting to look at the following; traffic flow 
on the current site, traffic backing up onto Leaberry Way, parking, vehicles blocked in spaces, and the 
general site layout. The Planning Commission has discussed the above items and referred the 
application to the Town Council with a recommendation for approval. 

Staff recommends the Town Council hear all the public’s comments at the public hearing and discuss 
in detail the comments and concerns. Based on the findings and the Planning Commission's 
recommendation of approval, Staff supports approval of second drive-thru lane. 

Draft Motions:
"I move the Town Council to approve the Special Use Permit for McDonald's to build a second drive-thru lane 
at the 6740 Leaberry Way location." 

Or

Alternate motion.
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                       Emily K. Lockhart
 Town Planner and Zoning Administrator 

 
 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:   Honorable Mayor and Town Council  
FROM:  Emily Lockhart, Town Planner and Zoning Administrator  
DATE:  December 3, 2018 
SUBJECT:   Haymarket Iceplex Bond Release Letter 
 
 

Background:   
The Haymarket Iceplex plan and as-builts, prepared by Christopher Consultants, have 
been approved. The plan proposed an addition to the existing Haymarket Iceplex 
Skating Facility.  
 
Purpose: 
The applicant has completed construction and development for the project and wishes 
to release the Performance Bond. Based on inspections, the development activities 
appear to be in general conformance with the approved plan, and the Town has received 
documentation of all final building inspection reports.  
 
Budgetary Impact:  
Not Applicable 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
I have no objections to releasing the Performance Bond for this project. I recommend 
that the Performance Bond be released.  
 
Draft Motion: 
1. I move the Town Council release the Performance Bond for Haymarket Iceplex.  
 
Or, 

  
2. Alternate Motion  
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